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UNITED STATES
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Washington D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

ý      QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018 

or

o         TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the transition period from               to              

Commission file number 001-31567

CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Hawaii 99-0212597
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

220 South King Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(808) 544-0500
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes ý  No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files).  Yes ý  No o
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer", "accelerated
filer", "smaller reporting company", and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.:

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company o
Emerging growth company o

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2)(B)
of the Securities Act . o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act).  Yes o  No ý

The number of shares outstanding of registrant's common stock, no par value, on July 27, 2018 was 29,423,454
shares.
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PART I.   FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Forward-Looking Statements

This document may contain forward-looking statements concerning: projections of revenues, income/loss,
earnings/loss per share, capital expenditures, dividends, capital structure, net interest margin or other financial items,
plans and objectives of management for future operations, future economic performance, or any of the assumptions
underlying or relating to any of the foregoing. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do
not relate strictly to historical or current facts, and may include the words "believes," "plans," "intends," "expects,"
"anticipates," "forecasts," "hopes," "should," "estimates" or words of similar meaning. While we believe that our
forward-looking statements and the assumptions underlying them are reasonably based, such statements and
assumptions are by their nature subject to risks and uncertainties, and thus could later prove to be inaccurate or
incorrect. Accordingly, actual results could materially differ from projections for a variety of reasons, to include, but
not be limited to: adverse changes in the financial performance and/or condition of our borrowers and, as a result,
increased loan delinquency rates, deterioration in asset quality, and losses in our loan portfolio; the impact of local,
national, and international economies and events (including natural disasters such as volcanoes, wildfires, tsunamis,
storms and earthquakes) on the Company's business and operations and on tourism, the military, and other major
industries operating within the Hawaii market and any other markets in which the Company does business;
deterioration or malaise in domestic economic conditions, including any destabilization in the financial industry and
deterioration of the real estate market, as well as the impact of declining levels of consumer and business confidence
in the state of the economy in general and in financial institutions in particular; changes in estimates of future reserve
requirements based upon the periodic review thereof under relevant regulatory and accounting requirements; the
impact of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, changes in capital standards, other
regulatory reform, including but not limited to regulations promulgated by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau,
government-sponsored enterprise reform, and any related rules and regulations on our business operations and
competitiveness; the costs and effects of legal and regulatory developments, including the resolution of legal
proceedings or regulatory or other governmental inquiries, the results of regulatory examinations or reviews and the
effect of, and our ability to comply with, any regulatory orders or actions we are or may become subject to; ability to
successfully implement our initiatives to lower our efficiency ratio; the ability to address any material weakness in our
internal controls over financial reporting or disclosure controls and procedures; the effects of and changes in trade,
monetary and fiscal policies and laws, including the interest rate policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System; inflation, interest rate, securities market and monetary fluctuations; negative trends in our market
capitalization and adverse changes in the price of the Company's common stock; political instability; acts of war or
terrorism; changes in consumer spending, borrowings and savings habits; failure to maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting or disclosure controls and procedures; technological changes; changes in the competitive
environment among financial holding companies and other financial service providers; the effect of changes in
accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the regulatory agencies, as well as the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, the Financial Accounting Standards Board and other accounting standard setters; our
ability to attract and retain key personnel; changes in our organization, compensation and benefit plans; and our
success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing items. For further information on factors that could cause
actual results to materially differ from projections, please see the Company's publicly available Securities and
Exchange Commission filings, including the Company's Form 10-K for the last fiscal year and, in particular, the
discussion of "Risk Factors" set forth therein. The Company does not update any of its forward-looking statements
except as required by law.
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CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)

(dollars in thousands) June 30,
2018

December
31,
2017

Assets
Cash and due from banks $75,547 $75,318
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 13,948 6,975
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value 1,279,969 1,304,066
Held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortized cost; fair value of: $152,330 at June 30, 2018
and $189,201 at December 31, 2017 158,156 191,753

Equity securities, at fair value 844 825
Total investment securities 1,438,969 1,496,644

Loans held for sale 9,096 16,336

Loans and leases 3,881,581 3,770,615
Allowance for loan and lease losses (48,181 ) (50,001 )
Net loans and leases 3,833,400 3,720,614

Premises and equipment, net 47,004 48,348
Accrued interest receivable 16,606 16,581
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries 9,362 7,088
Other real estate owned 595 851
Mortgage servicing rights 15,756 15,843
Core deposit premium 669 2,006
Bank-owned life insurance 156,945 156,293
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 10,246 7,761
Other assets 53,376 53,050
Total assets $5,681,519 $5,623,708

Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand $1,365,010 $1,395,556
Interest-bearing demand 952,991 933,054
Savings and money market 1,502,284 1,481,876
Time 1,158,814 1,145,868
Total deposits 4,979,099 4,956,354

Short-term borrowings 87,000 32,000
Long-term debt 92,785 92,785
Other liabilities 41,967 42,534
Total liabilities 5,200,851 5,123,673

Equity
Preferred stock, no par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding: none at
June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 — —

485,402 503,988
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Common stock, no par value, authorized 185,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding:
29,489,954 at June 30, 2018 and 30,024,222 at December 31, 2017
Surplus 86,949 86,098
Accumulated deficit (70,435 ) (89,036 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (21,248 ) (1,039 )
Total shareholders' equity 480,668 500,011
Non-controlling interest — 24
Total equity 480,668 500,035
Total liabilities and equity $5,681,519 $5,623,708
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited) 

Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest income:
Interest and fees on loans and leases $38,699 $ 35,531 $76,089 $ 70,488
Interest and dividends on investment securities:
Taxable interest 8,717 8,481 17,560 16,616
Tax-exempt interest 933 974 1,866 1,953
Dividends 3 12 18 24
Interest on deposits in other banks 117 61 201 135
Dividends on Federal Home Loan Bank stock 40 21 85 77
Total interest income 48,509 45,080 95,819 89,293
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits:
Demand 193 154 373 294
Savings and money market 459 259 828 516
Time 4,034 2,136 7,459 3,853
Interest on short-term borrowings 48 46 91 77
Interest on long-term debt 1,103 856 2,074 1,669
Total interest expense 5,837 3,451 10,825 6,409
Net interest income 42,672 41,629 84,994 82,884
Provision (credit) for loan and lease losses 532 (2,282 ) 321 (2,362 )
Net interest income after provision (credit) for loan and lease losses 42,140 43,911 84,673 85,246
Other operating income:
Mortgage banking income 1,775 1,957 3,622 3,900
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,977 2,120 3,980 4,156
Other service charges and fees 3,377 3,053 6,411 5,801
Income from fiduciary activities 1,017 964 1,973 1,828
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 37 151 80 212
Fees on foreign exchange 277 130 488 293
Investment securities gains (losses) — (1,640 ) — (1,640 )
Income from bank-owned life insurance 501 583 819 1,700
Loan placement fees 220 146 417 280
Net gain on sales of foreclosed assets — 84 — 186
Other 449 322 794 1,168
Total other operating income 9,630 7,870 18,584 17,884
Other operating expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 18,783 17,983 37,288 35,370
Net occupancy 3,360 3,335 6,626 6,749
Equipment 1,044 967 2,112 1,809
Amortization of core deposit premium 668 669 1,337 1,337
Communication expense 746 891 1,644 1,791
Legal and professional services 1,769 1,987 3,590 3,779
Computer software expense 2,305 2,190 4,572 4,442
Advertising expense 617 390 1,229 782
Foreclosed asset expense 31 63 325 99
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Other 4,401 3,860 8,519 7,637
Total other operating expense 33,724 32,335 67,242 63,795
Income before income taxes 18,046 19,446 36,015 39,335
Income tax expense 3,822 7,421 7,514 14,231
Net income $14,224 $ 12,025 $28,501 $ 25,104
Per common share data:
Basic earnings per common share $0.48 $ 0.39 $0.96 $ 0.82
Diluted earnings per common share $0.48 $ 0.39 $0.95 $ 0.81
Cash dividends declared $0.21 $ 0.18 $0.40 $ 0.34
Weighted average common shares outstanding used in computation:
Basic shares 29,510,17530,568,247 29,658,05130,641,165
Diluted shares 29,714,94230,803,725 29,881,53430,879,923
 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Net income $14,224 $12,025 $28,501 $25,104
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities (3,669 ) 2,795 (18,640 ) 4,919
Defined benefit plans 150 190 406 (174 )
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (3,519 ) 2,985 (18,234 ) 4,745
Comprehensive income $10,705 $15,010 $10,267 $29,849

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Unaudited)

Common
Shares
Outstanding

Preferred
Stock

Common
Stock Surplus Accumulated

Deficit

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)

Non-
Controlling
Interest

Total

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Balance at December 31,
2017 30,024,222 $ —$503,988 $86,098 $ (89,036 ) $ (1,039 ) $ 24 $500,035

Impact of the adoption of new
accounting standards (1) — — — — 139 (139 ) — —

Adjusted balance at January
1, 2018 30,024,222 — 503,988 86,098 (88,897 ) (1,178 ) 24 500,035

Impact of the adoption of new
accounting standards (2) — — — — 1,836 (1,836 ) — —

Net income — — — — 28,501 — — 28,501
Other comprehensive loss — — — — — (18,234 ) — (18,234 )
Cash dividends ($0.40 per
share) — — — — (11,875 ) — — (11,875 )

16,950 net shares of common
stock purchased by directors'
deferred compensation plan

— — (504 ) — — — — (504 )

614,247 shares of common
stock repurchased and retired
and other related costs

(614,247 ) — (18,082 ) — — — (18,082 )

Share-based compensation 79,979 — — 851 — — — 851
Distribution from variable
interest entity — — — — — — (24 ) (24 )

Balance at June 30, 2018 29,489,954 $ —$485,402 $86,949 $ (70,435 ) $ (21,248 ) $ — $480,668

Balance at December 31,
2016 30,796,243 $ —$530,932 $84,180 $ (108,941 ) $ (1,521 ) $ 25 $504,675

Net income — — — — 25,104 — — 25,104
Other comprehensive income — — — — — 4,745 — 4,745
Cash dividends ($0.34 per
share) — — — — (10,432 ) — — (10,432 )

10,620 net shares of common
stock purchased by directors'
deferred compensation plan

— — (341 ) — — — — (341 )

362,371 shares of common
stock repurchased and retired
and other related costs

(362,371 ) — (11,208 ) — — — — (11,208 )

Share-based compensation 80,927 — — 412 — — — 412
Balance at June 30, 2017 30,514,799 $ —$519,383 $84,592 $ (94,269 ) $ 3,224 $ 25 $512,955

(1) Represents the impact of the adoption of Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") ASU 2016-01. See Notes 1 and 2
to the consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Edgar Filing: CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

10



(2) Represents the impact of the adoption of ASU 2018-02. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for
additional information.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $28,501 $25,104
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision (credit) for loan and lease losses 321 (2,362 )
Depreciation and amortization 3,177 3,150
Write down of other real estate, net of gain on sale 250 (165 )
Amortization of core deposit premium and mortgage servicing rights 2,231 2,404
Net amortization and accretion of premium/discounts on investment securities 5,769 5,826
Share-based compensation 851 412
Net loss on sales of investment securities — 1,640
Net gain on sales of residential mortgage loans (1,931 ) (2,396 )
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 118,294 168,624
Originations of loans held for sale (109,123) (147,635 )
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries (80 ) (212 )
Net increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance (819 ) (2,170 )
Deferred income taxes 7,348 13,648
Net tax benefits from share-based compensation 166 583
Net change in other assets and liabilities (5,274 ) (8,279 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 49,681 58,172
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturities of and calls on investment securities available-for-sale 78,401 86,372
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale — 96,019
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale (85,313 ) (253,372 )
Proceeds from maturities of and calls on investment securities held-to-maturity 33,319 12,715
Net loan proceeds (originations) (92,539 ) (17,715 )
Purchases of loan portfolios (20,608 ) (50,725 )
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed loans/other real estate owned 46 102
Proceeds from bank-owned life insurance 167 1,710
Net purchases of premises and equipment (1,833 ) (4,144 )
Net return of capital from unconsolidated subsidiaries 578 455
Net (purchases of) proceeds from redemption of FHLB stock (2,485 ) 5,080
Net cash used in investing activities (90,267 ) (123,503 )
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 22,745 278,181
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings 55,000 (135,000 )
Cash dividends paid on common stock (11,875 ) (10,432 )
Repurchases of common stock and other related costs (18,082 ) (11,208 )
Net cash provided by financing activities 47,788 121,541
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,202 56,210
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 82,293 84,341
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $89,495 $140,551

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
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Interest $10,552 $5,461
Income taxes 22 4,000
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Net reclassification of loans to foreclosed loans/other real estate owned 40 154

 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Central Pacific Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries
(herein referred to as the "Company," "we," "us" or "our") have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q
and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in
financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and
regulations.

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction with the
Company's consolidated financial statements and notes thereto filed on Form 10-K, as amended by our Form 10-K/A
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation have been made and include all normal recurring adjustments. Interim results of operations are not
necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the year.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

In December 2015, we acquired a 50% ownership interest in a mortgage loan origination and brokerage company,
One Hawaii HomeLoans, LLC. The bank concluded that the investment meets the consolidation requirements under
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 810, "Consolidation."
The bank concluded that the entity meets the definition of a variable interest entity and that we are the primary
beneficiary of the variable interest entity. Accordingly, the investment was consolidated into our financial statements.
One Hawaii HomeLoans, LLC was terminated in 2017, and final payment of taxes and distributions to members were
made in March 2018.

We have 50% ownership interests in three other mortgage loan origination and brokerage companies which are
accounted for using the equity method and are included in investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries: Gentry
HomeLoans, LLC, Haseko HomeLoans, LLC and Island Pacific HomeLoans, LLC. We also had 50%  ownership
interest in one additional mortgage loan origination and brokerage company, Pacific Access Mortgage, LLC, which
was also accounted for using the equity method and was included in investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries. Pacific
Access Mortgage, LLC was terminated in 2017, and final payment of taxes and distributions to members were made
in March 2018.

We also have non-controlling equity investments in affiliates that are accounted for under the cost method and are
included in investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries.

Our investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries accounted for under the equity and cost methods were $0.1 million
and $9.2 million, respectively, at June 30, 2018 and $0.6 million and $6.5 million, respectively, at December 31,
2017. Our policy for determining impairment of these investments includes an evaluation of whether a loss in value of
an investment is other than temporary. Evidence of a loss in value includes absence of an ability to recover the
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carrying amount of the investment or the inability of the investee to sustain an earnings capacity which would justify
the carrying amount of the investment. We perform impairment tests whenever indicators of impairment are present.
If the value of an investment declines and it is considered other than temporary, the investment is written down to its
respective fair value in the period in which this determination is made.

The Company sponsors the Central Pacific Bank Foundation, which is not consolidated in the Company's financial
statements.

Reclassifications

The Company's equity investment securities in the prior year have been reclassified from available-for-sale debt
securities to conform to the current year's presentation in accordance with Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
2016-01, "Financial Instruments (Topic 825): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities." The
reclassification had no impact on the Company's reported net income or shareholders' equity.

9
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2.   RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Accounting Standards Adopted in 2018

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)." ASU 2014-09
requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers. This ASU replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP. ASU
2014-09 was initially effective for the Company's reporting period beginning on January 1, 2017. However, in August
2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the
Effective Date" which deferred the effective date by one year. For financial reporting purposes, the standard allows for
either a full retrospective or modified retrospective adoption. The FASB has also issued additional updates to provide
further clarification to specific implementation issues associated with ASU 2014-09. These updates include ASU
2016-08, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations," ASU
2016-10, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing,"
ASU 2016-12, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical
Expedients," and ASU 2016-20 "Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606." Our revenue is comprised of
net interest income on financial assets and financial liabilities, which is our main source of income, and other
operating income. The scope of ASU 2014-09 explicitly excludes net interest income, as well as other revenues
associated with financial assets and liabilities, including loans, leases, securities and derivatives. With respect to other
operating income, the Company conducted a comprehensive scoping exercise to determine the revenue streams that
are in scope of the guidance. This included reviewing the contracts potentially impacted by the standard in revenue
streams such as deposit-related fees, merchant fees, bank card fees, interchange fees, commissions income, trust and
asset management fees, foreign exchange fees, and loan placement fees. We adopted ASU 2014-09 and all subsequent
amendments to the standard beginning January 1, 2018 under the modified retrospective approach. Based on our
analysis, the standard required us to change how we recognize certain recurring revenue streams on a gross versus net
basis. This resulted in an increase in other service charges and fees totaling $0.2 million and $0.3 million during the
three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively, and the resultant increase in other operating expense-other for
the same amount. These changes did not have an impact to our net income; as such a cumulative effect adjustment to
opening accumulated deficit was not deemed necessary. Results for reporting periods beginning after January 1, 2018
are presented under ASC 606 while prior period amounts continue to be recorded in accordance with legacy GAAP.
Refer to Note 12 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers for further discussion on the Company's accounting
policies for revenue sources within the scope of Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 606.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, "Financial Instruments (Topic 825): Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Assets and Liabilities." The amendments in ASU 2016-01 made targeted improvements to GAAP as
follows: 1) required equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting, or those
that result in consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net
income, 2) simplified the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values by
requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment, 3) eliminated the requirement to disclose the fair value of
financial instruments measured at amortized cost for entities that are not public business entities, 4) eliminated the
requirement for public business entities to disclose the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair
value that is required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet, 5)
required public business entities to use the exit price notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for
disclosure purposes, 6) required an entity to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total
change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has
elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments, 7)
required separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of
financial asset (that is, securities or loans and receivables) on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the
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financial statements, and 8) clarified that an entity should evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax
asset related to available-for-sale securities in combination with the entity’s other deferred tax assets. The Company
adopted ASU 2016-01 beginning January 1, 2018, which resulted in a reclassification of the Company's equity
investment securities portfolio of $0.8 million and $0.8 million as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively, from available-for-sale debt securities to equity securities on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.
Changes in fair value are recognized in net income. In addition, during the first quarter of 2018, the Company
recorded a cumulative effect adjustment which increased opening retained earnings (or reduced opening accumulated
deficit) and decreased accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ("AOCI") by $0.1 million related to the
unrealized gains on the equity investment securities portfolio and changes in the fair value of the equity investment
securities portfolio were recognized in net income. The Company also engaged a third-party consultant, who used a
refined calculation to determine the fair value of our loans held for investment portfolio using the exit price notion,
which is included in our fair value disclosures in Note 18 - Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities. The refined
calculation did not have a material impact on our fair value disclosures.

10

Edgar Filing: CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

17



In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain
Cash Receipts and Cash Payments." ASU 2016-15 provided guidance on eight statement of cash flow classification
issues and was intended to reduce the current and future diversity in practice described in the amendments. Current
GAAP is either unclear or does not include specific guidance on the eight statement of cash flow classification issues
included in ASU 2016-15. The Company adopted ASU 2016-15 effective January 1, 2018. The amendments in ASU
2016-15 did not impact the Company's financial statements as our current practice was consistent with the update.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, "Compensation—Retirement Benefits (Topic 715): Improving the
Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Post-retirement Benefit Cost." ASU 2017-07 requires an
entity to present the service cost component of the net periodic benefit cost in the same line item or items in the
statement of income as other employee compensation costs arising from services rendered by the pertinent employees
during the period. In addition, only the service cost component is eligible for capitalization. The other components of
net benefit costs should be presented in the statement of income separately from the service cost component and
outside a subtotal of income from operations, if one is presented. If a separate line item is used to present the other
components, that line item shall be described appropriately. The line items used in the income statement to present the
components other than the service cost component shall be disclosed if a Company elects to not present them in a
separate line item. The Company adopted ASU 2017-07 effective January 1, 2018. The amendments in ASU 2017-07
did not impact the Company's financial statements.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08, "Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20): Premium
Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities." ASU 2017-08 shortens the amortization period for certain
callable debt securities held at a premium to the earliest call date. ASU 2017-08 does not require an accounting
change for securities held at a discount; the discount continues to be amortized to maturity. The Company adopted
ASU 2017-08 effective January 1, 2018. The amendments in ASU 2017-08 did not have a material impact to the
Company's financial statements.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, "Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of
Modification." ASU 2017-09 was issued to provide clarity and reduce both (1) diversity in practice and (2) cost and
complexity when applying the guidance in Topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation, to a change to the terms
or conditions of a share-based payment award. Diversity in practice has arisen in part because some entities apply
modification accounting under Topic 718 for modifications to terms and conditions that they consider substantive, but
do not when they conclude that particular modifications are not substantive. Others apply modification accounting for
any change to an award, except for changes that they consider purely administrative in nature. Still others apply
modification accounting when a change to an award changes the fair value, the vesting, or the classification of the
award. In practice, it appears that the evaluation of a change in fair value, vesting, or classification may be used to
evaluate whether a change is substantive. ASU 2017-09 includes guidance on determining which changes to the terms
and conditions of share-based payment awards require an entity to apply modification accounting under Topic 718.
The Company adopted ASU 2017-09 effective January 1, 2018. The amendments in ASU 2017-09 did not impact the
Company's financial statements as the Company has not historically had any scope modifications and has no plans to
do so in the near future.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, "Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic
220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income." ASU 2018-02 was
issued to address certain stranded tax effects in AOCI as a result of H.R.1., commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act ("Tax Reform"). ASU 2018-02 provides companies the option to reclassify stranded tax effects within AOCI
to retained earnings (or accumulated deficit) in each period in which the effect of the change from the newly enacted
corporate tax rate is recorded. The amount of the reclassification is calculated on the basis of the difference between
the historical and newly enacted tax rates for deferred tax assets and liabilities related to items within AOCI. ASU
2018-02 requires companies to disclose its accounting policy related to releasing income tax effects from accumulated
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other comprehensive income, whether it has elected to reclassify the stranded tax effects, and information about the
other income tax effects that are reclassified. Although ASU 2018-02 is effective for the Company's reporting period
beginning on January 1, 2019, the Company elected to early adopt the standard effective January 1, 2018. As a result,
the Company recorded cumulative effect adjustments which increased opening retained earnings (or reduced opening
accumulated deficit) and decreased AOCI for the stranded tax effects related to the Company's defined benefit pension
and supplemental retirement plan obligations and the unrealized loss on the Company's investment securities portfolio
by $1.4 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

Impact of Other Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements on Future Filings

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)." ASU 2016-02 increases transparency and
comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing
key information about leasing arrangements. The ASU establishes a right-of-use ("ROU") model that requires a lessee
to recognize a ROU asset and lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with a term of longer than 12 months.
The ASU is effective

11
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for the Company's reporting period beginning January 1, 2019 and must be applied using the modified retrospective
approach. Based on preliminary evaluation, the ASU will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements as the projected minimum lease payments under existing leases subject to the ASU are less than one
percent of our total assets as of June 30, 2018.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, "Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments," which significantly changes how entities will measure credit losses for most
financial assets and certain other instruments that aren’t measured at fair value through net income. In issuing the
standard, the FASB is responding to criticism that today’s “incurred loss” guidance delays the recognition of credit losses
on loans, leases, held-to-maturity debt securities, loan commitments, and financial guarantees, providing for a current
expected credit loss (“CECL”) approach to determine the allowance for credit losses. CECL requires an organization to
measure all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current
conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. In addition, this guidance modifies the accounting treatment for
other-than-temporary impairment for available-for-sale debt securities. Organizations will continue to use judgment to
determine which loss estimation methods are appropriate for their circumstances. This guidance requires entities to
record a cumulative effect adjustment to the consolidated balance sheet as of the beginning of the first reporting
period in which the guidance is effective. This update is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019, with earlier adoption permitted. As such, the Company will
implement CECL for the reporting period beginning January 1, 2020. The new guidance will require significant
operational changes, particularly in data collection and analysis.

The Company has formed a steering committee that is responsible for oversight of the Company’s implementation
strategy for compliance with provisions of the new standard. The Company has also established a project management
governance process to manage the implementation across affected disciplines. An external provider specializing in
community bank loss driver and CECL reserving model design as well as other related consulting services has been
retained, and we have begun to evaluate potential CECL modeling alternatives. The Company presently plans to
generate and evaluate model scenarios under CECL in tandem with its current reserving processes for interim and
annual reporting periods in 2019. While the Company is currently unable to reasonably estimate the impact of
adopting this new guidance, management expects the impact of adoption will be significantly influenced by the
composition and quality of the Company’s loans and investment securities as well as the economic conditions as of the
date of adoption. The Company also anticipates significant changes to the processes and procedures for calculating the
reserve for credit losses and continues to evaluate the potential impact on our consolidated financial statements.

12

Edgar Filing: CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

20



3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

A summary of our investment portfolio is as follows:

(dollars in thousands) Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

June 30, 2018
Held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored entities $92,247 $ 3 $ (3,916 ) $88,334
Commercial - U.S. Government-sponsored entities 65,909 — (1,913 ) 63,996
Total $158,156 $ 3 $ (5,829 ) $152,330

Available-for-sale:
Debt securities:
States and political subdivisions $176,640 $ 1,258 $ (1,980 ) $175,918
Corporate securities 65,908 28 (504 ) 65,432
U.S. Treasury obligations and direct obligations of U.S Government
agencies 35,746 23 (266 ) 35,503

Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored entities 797,679 389 (24,343 ) 773,725
Commercial - U.S. Government agencies and sponsored entities 54,429 — (2,006 ) 52,423
Residential - Non-government agencies 43,150 316 (620 ) 42,846
Commercial - Non-government agencies 134,962 877 (1,717 ) 134,122
Total $1,308,514 $ 2,891 $ (31,436 ) $1,279,969

Equity securities $692 $ 152 $— $844
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(dollars in thousands) Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

December 31, 2017
Held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored entities $100,279 $ 106 $ (2,222 ) $98,163
Commercial - U.S. Government-sponsored entities 91,474 — (436 ) 91,038
Total $191,753 $ 106 $ (2,658 ) $189,201

Available-for-sale:
Debt securities:
States and political subdivisions $178,459 $ 2,041 $ (719 ) $179,781
Corporate securities 73,772 582 (76 ) 74,278
U.S. Treasury obligations and direct obligations of U.S Government
agencies 25,519 60 (69 ) 25,510

Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored entities 808,242 2,230 (9,789 ) 800,683
Commercial - U.S. Government agencies and sponsored entities 40,012 — (287 ) 39,725
Residential - Non-government agencies 45,679 1,084 — 46,763
Commercial - Non-government agencies 135,058 2,461 (193 ) 137,326
Total $1,306,741 $ 8,458 $ (11,133 ) $1,304,066

Equity securities $686 $ 139 $— $825
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at June 30, 2018 by contractual maturity are
shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

June 30, 2018

(dollars in thousands) Amortized
Cost Fair Value

Held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored entities $92,247 $88,334
Commercial - U.S. Government-sponsored entities 65,909 63,996
Total $158,156 $152,330

Available-for-sale:
Due in one year or less $35,234 $35,259
Due after one year through five years 132,627 132,431
Due after five years through ten years 50,044 49,512
Due after ten years 60,389 59,651

Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored entities 797,679 773,725
Commercial - U.S. Government agencies and sponsored entities 54,429 52,423
Residential - Non-government agencies 43,150 42,846
Commercial - Non-government agencies 134,962 134,122
Total $1,308,514 $1,279,969

Equity securities $692 $844

We did not sell any available-for-sale securities during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018.

In the second quarter of 2017, we completed an investment portfolio repositioning strategy designed to enhance
potential prospective earnings and improve net interest margin. In connection with the repositioning, we sold $97.7
million in lower-yielding available-for-sale securities, and purchased $97.4 million in higher yielding, longer duration
investment securities. The
investment securities sold had a duration of 3.3 years and an average yield of 1.91%. Gross proceeds of the sale of
$96.0 million were immediately reinvested back into investment securities with a duration of 4.6 years and an average
yield of 2.57%. The new securities were classified in the available-for-sale portfolio. There were no gross realized
gains on the sale of the investment securities. Gross realized losses on the sale of the investment securities were $1.6
million. The specific identification method was used as the basis for determining the cost of all securities sold.

We did not sell any available-for-sale securities during the three months ended March 31, 2017.

Investment securities of $1.03 billion and $1.08 billion at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, were
pledged to secure public funds on deposit and other long-term debt and short-term borrowings.
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Provided below is a summary of the 345 and 223 investment securities which were in an unrealized or unrecognized
loss position at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, aggregated by major security type and length of
time in a continuous unrealized or unrecognized loss position.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

(dollars in thousands) Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

June 30, 2018
Debt securities:
States and political subdivisions $72,466 $ (1,052 ) $15,114 $ (928 ) $87,580 $ (1,980 )
Corporate securities 47,624 (316 ) 5,144 (188 ) 52,768 (504 )
U.S. Treasury obligations and direct obligations
of U.S Government agencies 28,864 (266 ) — — 28,864 (266 )

Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored
entities 499,759 (11,959 ) 339,024 (16,300 ) 838,783 (28,259 )

Residential - Non-government agencies 25,590 (620 ) — — 25,590 (620 )
Commercial - U.S. Government agencies and
sponsored entities 116,420 (3,919 ) — — 116,420 (3,919 )

Commercial - Non-government agencies 85,063 (1,717 ) — — 85,063 (1,717 )
Total temporarily impaired securities $875,786 $ (19,849 ) $359,282 $ (17,416 ) $1,235,068 $ (37,265 )

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

(dollars in thousands) Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

December 31, 2017
Debt securities:
States and political subdivisions $53,811 $ (305 ) $15,403 $ (414 ) $69,214 $ (719 )
Corporate securities — — 5,307 (76 ) 5,307 (76 )
U.S. Treasury obligations and direct obligations of
U.S Government agencies 10,740 (69 ) — — 10,740 (69 )

Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government-sponsored entities 335,883 (3,372 ) 340,219 (8,639 ) 676,102 (12,011 )
Residential - Non-government agencies — — — — — —
Commercial - U.S. Government-sponsored
entities 130,763 (723 ) — — 130,763 (723 )

Commercial - Non-government agencies 28,490 (193 ) — — 28,490 (193 )
Total temporarily impaired securities $ 559,687 $ (4,662 ) $360,929 $ (9,129 ) $920,616 $ (13,791 )

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment ("OTTI")

Unrealized losses for all investment securities are reviewed to determine whether the losses are deemed
"other-than-temporary." Investment securities are evaluated for OTTI on at least a quarterly basis and more frequently
when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation to determine whether a decline in their value below
amortized cost is other-than-temporary. In conducting this assessment, we evaluate a number of factors including, but
not limited to:

•The length of time and the extent to which fair value has been less than the amortized cost basis;
•Adverse conditions specifically related to the security, an industry, or a geographic area;
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• The historical and implied volatility of the fair value of the
security;

•The payment structure of the debt security and the likelihood of the issuer being able to make payments;
•Failure of the issuer to make scheduled interest or principal payments;
•Any rating changes by a rating agency; and
•Recoveries or additional declines in fair value subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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The term "other-than-temporary" is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates that the
prospects for a near-term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that there is a general lack of evidence to
support a realizable value equal to or greater than the carrying value of the investment. Once a decline in value is
determined to be other-than-temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to earnings is
recognized for anticipated credit losses.

Because we have no intent to sell securities in an unrealized loss position and it is not more likely than not that we will
be required to sell such securities before recovery of its amortized cost basis, we do not consider our investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired.

4. LOANS AND LEASES

Loans and leases, excluding loans held for sale, consisted of the following:

(dollars in thousands) June 30,
2018

December 31,
2017

Commercial, financial and agricultural $522,903 $ 503,738
Real estate:
Construction 67,289 64,525
Residential mortgage 1,373,345 1,337,193
Home equity 430,871 412,230
Commercial mortgage 1,019,629 979,239
Consumer 464,950 470,819
Leases 223 362
Gross loans and leases 3,879,210 3,768,106
Net deferred costs 2,371 2,509
Total loans and leases, net of deferred costs $3,881,581 $ 3,770,615

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we foreclosed on one loan totaling $40 thousand, which was sold at a
small premium to book value.

During the six months ended June 30, 2017, we foreclosed on one loan totaling $0.1 million.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, we did not transfer any loans to the held-for-sale category.

We did not sell any portfolio loans during the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

In May 2018, we purchased an auto loan portfolio totaling $20.6 million which included a $0.1 million premium over
the $20.5 million outstanding balance. At the time of purchase, the auto loans had a weighted average remaining term
of 63 months and a weighted average yield, net of the premium paid and servicing costs, of 3.89%.

In November 2017, we purchased an auto loan portfolio totaling $33.1 million which included a $1.1 million premium
over the $31.9 million outstanding balance. At the time of purchase, the auto loans had a weighted average remaining
term of 76 months and a weighted average yield, net of the premium paid and servicing costs, of 3.04%.

In May 2017, we purchased an auto loan portfolio totaling $26.6 million which included a $0.9 million premium over
the $25.7 million outstanding balance. At the time of purchase, the auto loans had a weighted average remaining term
of 77 months and a weighted average yield, net of the premium paid and servicing costs, of 2.67%.
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In March 2017, we purchased an auto loan portfolio totaling $24.1 million which included a $0.4 million premium
over the $23.8 million outstanding balance. At the time of purchase, the auto loans had a weighted average remaining
term of 55 months and a weighted average yield, net of the premium paid and servicing costs, of 2.60%.
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Impaired Loans

The following tables present by class, the balance in the allowance for loan and lease losses (the "Allowance") and the
recorded investment in loans and leases based on the Company's impairment measurement method as of June 30, 2018
and December 31, 2017:

Real Estate

(dollars in thousands) Comml,
Fin & Ag Constr Resi

Mortgage
Home
Equity

Comml
Mortgage Consumer Leases Total

June 30, 2018
Allowance:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $— $— $— $— $— $— $— $—

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 7,525 1,811 14,252 3,168 15,094 6,331 — 48,181

Total ending balance $7,525 $1,811 $14,252 $3,168 $15,094 $6,331 $ — $48,181

Loans and leases:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $423 $2,437 $12,888 $514 $3,572 $— $ — $19,834

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 522,480 64,852 1,360,457 430,357 1,016,057 464,950 223 3,859,376

Subtotal 522,903 67,289 1,373,345 430,871 1,019,629 464,950 223 3,879,210
Net deferred costs (income) 392 (395 ) 3,874 (1 ) (1,439 ) (60 ) — 2,371
Total loans and leases, net
of deferred costs (income) $523,295 $66,894 $1,377,219 $430,870 $1,018,190 $464,890 $ 223 $3,881,581

Real Estate

(dollars in thousands) Comml,
Fin & Ag Constr Resi

Mortgage
Home
Equity

Comml
Mortgage Consumer Leases Total

December 31, 2017
Allowance:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $— $— $— $— $— $— $— $—

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 7,594 1,835 14,328 3,317 16,801 6,126 — 50,001

Total ending balance $7,594 $1,835 $14,328 $3,317 $16,801 6,126 $ — $50,001

Loans and leases:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $491 $2,597 $13,862 $416 $3,914 $— $ — $21,280

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 503,247 61,928 1,323,331 411,814 975,325 470,819 362 3,746,826

Subtotal 503,738 64,525 1,337,193 412,230 979,239 470,819 362 3,768,106
Net deferred costs (income) 281 (285 ) 4,028 — (1,442 ) (73 ) — 2,509
Total loans and leases, net of
deferred costs (income) $504,019 $64,240 $1,341,221 $412,230 $977,797 $470,746 $ 362 $3,770,615
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There were no impaired loans with an allowance recorded as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. The following
table presents by class, information related to impaired loans as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Recorded
Investment

Allowance
Allocated

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Recorded
Investment

Allowance
Allocated

(dollars in thousands)
Impaired loans with no related Allowance recorded:
Commercial, financial & agricultural $533 $ 423 $ —$602 $ 491 $ —
Real estate:
Construction 7,787 2,437 — 7,947 2,597 —
Residential mortgage 13,947 12,888 — 14,920 13,862 —
Home equity 514 514 — 416 416 —
Commercial mortgage 3,572 3,572 — 3,914 3,914 —
Total impaired loans $26,353 $ 19,834 $ —$27,799 $ 21,280 $ —
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The following table presents by class, the average recorded investment and interest income recognized on impaired
loans for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

(dollars in thousands)
Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

Commercial, financial &
agricultural $628 $ 3 $1,291 $ 4 $540 $ 5 $1,624 $ 4

Real estate:
Construction 2,464 28 2,783 24 2,517 54 2,841 48
Residential mortgage 12,832 159 17,658 1,070 13,358 296 18,597 1,167
Home equity 518 — 1,482 1 546 — 1,310 1
Commercial mortgage 3,616 36 5,346 46 3,726 74 5,445 93
Total $20,058 $ 226 $28,560 $ 1,145 $20,687 $ 429 $29,817 $ 1,313

Foreclosure Proceedings

The Company did not have any residential mortgage loans collateralized by residential real estate property that were
in the process of foreclosure at June 30, 2018. The Company had $40 thousand of residential mortgage loans
collateralized by residential real estate property that were in the process of foreclosure at December 31, 2017.

Aging Analysis of Accruing and Non-Accruing Loans and Leases

For all loan types, the Company determines delinquency status by considering the number of days full payments
required by the contractual terms of the loan are past due. The following tables present by class, the aging of the
recorded investment in past due loans and leases as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

(dollars in thousands)

Accruing
Loans
30 - 59
Days
Past Due

Accruing
Loans
60 - 89
Days
Past Due

Accruing
Loans
Greater Than
90 Days
Past Due

Nonaccrual
Loans

Total
Past Due
and
Nonaccrual

Loans and
Leases
Not
Past Due

Total

June 30, 2018
Commercial, financial &
agricultural $ 10,622 $ 283 $ — $ — $ 10,905 $512,390 $523,295

Real estate:
Construction — — — — — 66,894 66,894
Residential mortgage — 2,069 279 2,400 4,748 1,372,471 1,377,219
Home equity 48 105 — 514 667 430,203 430,870
Commercial mortgage — — — — — 1,018,190 1,018,190
Consumer 1,512 860 362 — 2,734 462,156 464,890
Leases — — — — — 223 223
Total $ 12,182 $ 3,317 $ 641 $ 2,914 $ 19,054 $3,862,527 $3,881,581
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(dollars in thousands)

Accruing
Loans
30 - 59
Days
Past Due

Accruing
Loans
60 - 89
Days
Past Due

Accruing
Loans
Greater Than
90 Days
Past Due

Nonaccrual
Loans

Total
Past Due
and
Nonaccrual

Loans and
Leases
Not
Past Due

Total

December 31, 2017
Commercial, financial &
agricultural $ 410 $ 355 $ — $ — $ 765 $503,254 $504,019

Real estate:
Construction — — — — — 64,240 64,240
Residential mortgage 4,037 2,127 49 2,280 8,493 1,332,728 1,341,221
Home equity 105 264 — 416 785 411,445 412,230
Commercial mortgage — — — 79 79 977,718 977,797
Consumer 2,126 1,056 515 — 3,697 467,049 470,746
Leases — — — — — 362 362
Total $ 6,678 $ 3,802 $ 564 $ 2,775 $ 13,819 $3,756,796 $3,770,615

Modifications

Troubled debt restructurings ("TDRs") included in nonperforming assets at June 30, 2018 consisted of four Hawaii
residential mortgage loans with a combined principal balance of $0.5 million.

Concessions made to the original contractual terms of these loans consisted primarily of the deferral of interest and/or
principal payments due to deterioration in the borrowers' financial condition. The principal balances on these TDRs
had matured and/or were in default at the time of restructure, and we have no commitments to lend additional funds to
any of these borrowers. There were $11.3 million of TDRs still accruing interest at June 30, 2018, none of which were
more than 90 days delinquent. At December 31, 2017, there were $12.6 million of TDRs still accruing interest, none
of which were more than 90 days delinquent.

Some loans modified in a TDR may already be on nonaccrual status and partial charge-offs may have already been
taken against the outstanding loan balance. Thus, these loans have already been identified as impaired and have
already been evaluated under the Company's allowance for loan and lease losses (the "Allowance") methodology.
Loans that were not on nonaccrual status when modified in a TDR may have the financial effect of increasing the
specific allowance associated with the loan. The loans modified in a TDR did not have a material effect on our
provision for loan and lease losses (the "Provision") and the Allowance during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2018.

The following table presents by class, information related to loans modified in a TDR during the period presented.
There were no loans modified in a TDR during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 or the three months
ended June 30, 2017.

(dollars in thousands)
Number
of
Contracts

Recorded
Investment
(as of Period End)

Increase
in the
Allowance

Six Months Ended June 30, 2017
Commercial, financial & agricultural 1 $ 653 $ —
Total 1 $ 653 $ —
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No loans were modified as a TDR within the previous twelve months that subsequently defaulted during the three and
six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Credit Quality Indicators

The Company categorizes loans and leases into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of
borrowers to service their debt such as: current financial information, historical payment experience, credit
documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other factors. The Company analyzes loans
and leases individually by classifying the loans and leases by credit risk. This analysis includes non-homogeneous
loans and leases, such as commercial and commercial real estate loans. This analysis is performed on a quarterly basis.
The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings:
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Special Mention. Loans and leases classified as special mention, while still adequately protected by the borrower's
capital adequacy and payment capability, exhibit distinct weakening trends and/or elevated levels of exposure to
external conditions. If left unchecked or uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deteriorated prospects
of repayment. These exposures require management's close attention so as to avoid becoming undue or unwarranted
credit exposures.

Substandard. Loans and leases classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the borrower's current financial
condition and payment capability or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans and leases so classified have a
well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the orderly repayment of debt. They are characterized by the
distinct possibility that the bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful. Loans and leases classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard,
with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or orderly repayment in full, on the basis of current
existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable. Possibility of loss is extremely high, but
because of certain important and reasonably specific factors that may work to the advantage and strengthening of the
exposure, its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until its more exact status may be determined.

Loss. Loans and leases classified as loss are considered to be non-collectible and of such little value that their
continuance as bankable assets is not warranted. This does not mean the loan has absolutely no recovery value, but
rather it is neither practical nor desirable to defer writing off the loan, even though partial recovery may be obtained in
the future. Losses are taken in the period in which they surface as uncollectible.

Loans and leases not meeting the criteria above are considered to be pass-rated. The following table presents by class
and credit indicator, the recorded investment in the Company's loans and leases as of June 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017:

(dollars in thousands) Pass Special
Mention Substandard Loss Subtotal

Net 
Deferred
Costs
(Income)

Total

June 30, 2018
Commercial, financial & agricultural $496,758 $8,390 $ 17,755 $— $522,903 $ 392 $523,295
Real estate:
Construction 58,410 8,879 — — 67,289 (395 ) 66,894
Residential mortgage 1,370,568 — 2,777 — 1,373,345 3,874 1,377,219
Home equity 430,357 — 514 — 430,871 (1 ) 430,870
Commercial mortgage 1,007,316 10,613 1,700 — 1,019,629 (1,439 ) 1,018,190
Consumer 464,588 — 158 204 464,950 (60 ) 464,890
Leases 223 — — — 223 — 223
Total $3,828,220 $27,882 $ 22,904 $204 $3,879,210 $ 2,371 $3,881,581

(dollars in thousands) Pass Special
Mention Substandard Loss Subtotal

Net 
Deferred
Costs
(Income)

Total

December 31, 2017
Commercial, financial & agricultural $474,995 $7,543 $ 21,200 $— $503,738 $ 281 $504,019
Real estate:
Construction 55,646 8,879 — — 64,525 (285 ) 64,240
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Residential mortgage 1,334,760 — 2,433 — 1,337,193 4,028 1,341,221
Home equity 411,814 — 416 — 412,230 — 412,230
Commercial mortgage 955,865 12,735 10,639 — 979,239 (1,442 ) 977,797
Consumer 470,243 — 305 271 470,819 (73 ) 470,746
Leases 362 — — — 362 — 362
Total $3,703,685 $29,157 $ 34,993 $271 $3,768,106 $ 2,509 $3,770,615
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5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

The following table presents by class, the activity in the Allowance for the periods indicated:

Real Estate
Commercial,
Financial &
Agricultural

ConstructionResidential
Mortgage

Home
Equity

Commercial
Mortgage Consumer LeasesTotal

(dollars in thousands)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2018
Beginning balance $7,476 $1,714 $ 14,207 $3,328 $ 16,186 $ 6,306 $ —$49,217
Provision (credit) for loan and lease
losses 496 91 24 (169 ) (1,121 ) 1,211 — 532

7,972 1,805 14,231 3,159 15,065 7,517 — 49,749
Charge-offs 742 — — — — 1,729 — 2,471
Recoveries 295 6 21 9 29 543 — 903
Net charge-offs (recoveries) 447 (6 ) (21 ) (9 ) (29 ) 1,186 — 1,568
Ending balance $7,525 $1,811 $ 14,252 $3,168 $ 15,094 $ 6,331 $ —$48,181

Three Months Ended June 30, 2017
Beginning balance $8,346 $3,718 $ 14,892 $3,425 $ 19,187 $ 5,801 $ —$55,369
Provision (credit) for loan and lease
losses 353 (562 ) (1,495 ) (82 ) (1,131 ) 635 — (2,282 )

8,699 3,156 13,397 3,343 18,056 6,436 — 53,087
Charge-offs 337 — — — — 1,470 — 1,807
Recoveries 236 56 637 27 128 464 — 1,548
Net charge-offs (recoveries) 101 (56 ) (637 ) (27 ) (128 ) 1,006 — 259
Ending balance $8,598 $3,212 $ 14,034 $3,370 $ 18,184 $ 5,430 $ —$52,828

Real Estate
Commercial,
Financial &
Agricultural

ConstructionResidential
Mortgage

Home
Equity

Commercial
Mortgage Consumer LeasesTotal

(dollars in thousands)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2018
Beginning balance $7,594 $1,835 $ 14,328 $3,317 $ 16,801 $ 6,126 $ —$50,001
Provision (credit) for loan and lease
losses 732 (1,223 ) (123 ) (161 ) (1,751 ) 2,847 — 321

8,326 612 14,205 3,156 15,050 8,973 — 50,322
Charge-offs 1,240 — — — — 3,662 — 4,902
Recoveries 439 1,199 47 12 44 1,020 — 2,761
Net charge-offs (recoveries) 801 (1,199 ) (47 ) (12 ) (44 ) 2,642 — 2,141
Ending balance $7,525 $1,811 $ 14,252 $3,168 $ 15,094 $ 6,331 $ —$48,181

Six Months Ended June 30, 2017
Beginning balance $8,637 $4,224 $ 15,055 $3,502 $ 19,104 $ 6,109 $ —$56,631
Provision (credit) for loan and lease
losses 287 (1,089 ) (1,754 ) (161 ) (1,059 ) 1,414 — (2,362 )

8,924 3,135 13,301 3,341 18,045 7,523 — 54,269
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Charge-offs 837 — — — — 2,967 — 3,804
Recoveries 511 77 733 29 139 874 — 2,363
Net charge-offs (recoveries) 326 (77 ) (733 ) (29 ) (139 ) 2,093 — 1,441
Ending balance $8,598 $3,212 $ 14,034 $3,370 $ 18,184 $ 5,430 $ —$52,828

Loans held for sale and other real estate assets are not included in our assessment of the Allowance.

Our Provision was a debit of $0.5 million and $0.3 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2018,
respectively, compared to a credit of $2.3 million and $2.4 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2017,
respectively.
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6. SECURITIZATIONS

In prior years, we securitized certain residential mortgage loans with a U.S. Government sponsored entity and
continue to service the residential mortgage loans. The servicing assets were recorded at their respective fair values at
the time of securitization.

All unsold mortgage-backed securities from prior securitizations were categorized as available-for-sale securities and
were therefore recorded at their fair values of $1.2 million and $1.5 million at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively. The fair values of these mortgage-backed securities were based on quoted prices of similar instruments
in active markets. Unrealized gains of $41 thousand and $0.1 million on unsold mortgage-backed securities were
recorded in AOCI at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

7. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

The components of the Company's investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries were as follows:

(dollars in thousands)
June
30,
2018

December
31, 2017

Investments in low income housing tax credit partnerships $6,380 $ 3,608
Trust preferred investments 2,792 2,792
Investments in affiliates 136 634
Other 54 54
Total $9,362 $ 7,088

The Company had $5.6 million in unfunded low income housing commitments as of June 30, 2018 compared to $2.6
million at December 31, 2017. The Company expects to fund $1.9 million in 2018 and $3.7 million in 2019.

Investments in low income housing tax credit ("LIHTC") partnerships are accounted for using the cost method. The
following table presents amortization and tax credits recognized associated with our investments in LIHTC
partnerships for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017:

(dollars in thousands)

Three
Months
Ended
June 30,
2018

Three
Months
Ended
June 30,
2017

Six
Months
Ended
June 30,
2018

Six
Months
Ended
June 30,
2017

Cost method:
Amortization expense recognized in other operating expense $ 113 $ 223 $ 227 $ 456
Tax credits recognized in income tax expense 153 260 305 526

8. CORE DEPOSIT PREMIUM AND MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

The following table presents changes in core deposit premium and mortgage servicing rights for the six months ended
June 30, 2018:

(dollars in thousands)
Core
Deposit
Premium

Mortgage
Servicing
Rights

Total
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Balance, beginning of period $ 2,006 $15,843 $17,849
Additions — 807 807
Amortization (1,337 ) (894 ) (2,231 )
Balance, end of period $ 669 $15,756 $16,425

Income generated as the result of new mortgage servicing rights is reported as gains on sales of loans and totaled $0.4
million and $0.8 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively, compared to $0.6 million and
$1.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, respectively.
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Amortization of mortgage servicing rights was $0.4 million and $0.9 million, respectively, for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2018, compared to $0.5 million and $1.1 million for the three and six months ended June 30,
2017, respectively.

The following table presents the fair market value and key assumptions used in determining the fair market value of
our mortgage servicing rights:

Six
Months
Ended

Six
Months
Ended

(dollars in thousands) June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

Fair market value, beginning of period $17,161 $18,087
Fair market value, end of period 18,560 17,024
Weighted average discount rate 9.5 % 9.5 %
Forecasted constant prepayment rate assumption 13.9 16.1

The gross carrying value and accumulated amortization related to our core deposit premium and mortgage servicing
rights are presented below:

June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

(dollars in thousands)
Gross
Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Value

Gross
Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Value

Core deposit premium $44,642 $ (43,973 ) $669 $44,642 $ (42,636 ) $2,006
Mortgage servicing rights 65,208 (49,452 ) 15,756 64,401 (48,558 ) 15,843
Total $109,850 $ (93,425 ) $16,425 $109,043 $ (91,194 ) $17,849

Based on the core deposit premium and mortgage servicing rights held as of June 30, 2018, estimated amortization
expense for the remainder of fiscal year 2018, the next five succeeding fiscal years and all years thereafter are as
follows:

Estimated Amortization Expense

(dollars in thousands)
Core
Deposit
Premium

Mortgage
Servicing
Rights

Total

2018 (remainder) $ 669 $ 770 $ 1,439
2019 — 1,323 1,323
2020 — 1,113 1,113
2021 — 934 934
2022 — 793 793
2023 — 698 698
Thereafter — 10,125 10,125

$ 669 $ 15,756 $ 16,425

We perform an impairment assessment of our core deposit premium and mortgage servicing rights whenever events or
changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable.

9. DERIVATIVES
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We utilize various designated and undesignated derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to movements
in interest rates including interest rate swaps, interest rate lock commitments and forward sale commitments. We
measure all derivatives at fair value on our consolidated balance sheet. In each reporting period, we record the
derivative instruments in other assets or other liabilities depending on whether the derivatives are in an asset or
liability position. For derivative instruments that are designated as cash flow hedging instruments, we record the
effective portion of the changes in the fair value of the derivative in AOCI, net of tax, until earnings are affected by
the variability of cash flows of the hedged transaction. We immediately recognize the portion of the gain or loss in the
fair value of the derivative that represents hedge ineffectiveness in current period earnings. For derivative instruments
that are not designated as hedging instruments, changes in the fair value
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of the derivative are included in current period earnings. At June 30, 2018, we were not party to any derivatives
designated as part of a fair value or cash flow hedge.

Interest Rate Lock and Forward Sale Commitments

We enter into interest rate lock commitments on certain mortgage loans that are intended to be sold. To manage
interest rate risk on interest rate lock commitments, we also enter into forward loan sale commitments. The interest
rate locks and forward loan sale commitments are accounted for as undesignated derivatives and are recorded at their
respective fair values in other assets or other liabilities, with changes in fair value recorded in current period earnings.
These instruments serve to reduce our exposure to movements in interest rates. At June 30, 2018, we were a party to
interest rate lock and forward sale commitments on $3.7 million and $12.7 million of mortgage loans, respectively.

The following table presents the location of all assets and liabilities associated with our derivative instruments within
the consolidated balance sheets:

Derivatives Financial Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Fair Value at Fair Value at

(dollars in thousands) Balance Sheet Location
June
30,
2018

December
31,
2017

June 30,
2018

December
31,
2017

Interest rate lock and forward sale
commitments

Other assets / other
liabilities $ 22 $ 35 $ 51 $ 49

The following table presents the impact of derivative instruments and their location within the consolidated statements
of income:

Derivatives Financial Instruments
Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Location of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in
Earnings on Derivatives

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in
Earnings on Derivatives(dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2018
Interest rate lock and forward sale commitments Mortgage banking income $ (36 )
Loans held for sale Other income 7

Three Months Ended June 30, 2017
Interest rate lock and forward sale commitments Mortgage banking income 80
Loans held for sale Other income (3 )

Six Months Ended June 30, 2018
Interest rate lock and forward sale commitments Mortgage banking income (15 )
Loans held for sale Other income —

Six Months Ended June 30, 2017
Interest rate lock and forward sale commitments Mortgage banking income (127 )
Loans held for sale Other income (3 )
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10. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances and Other Borrowings

The bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines (the "FHLB") and maintained a $1.62 billion
line of credit as of June 30, 2018, compared to $1.50 billion at December 31, 2017. At June 30, 2018, $1.53 billion
was undrawn under this arrangement, compared to $1.47 billion at December 31, 2017. Short-term borrowings under
this arrangement totaled $87.0 million at June 30, 2018, compared to $32.0 million at December 31, 2017.  There
were no long-term borrowings under this arrangement at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. FHLB advances
available at June 30, 2018 were secured by certain real estate loans with a carrying value of $2.18 billion in
accordance with the collateral provisions of the Advances, Security and Deposit Agreement with the FHLB.

At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our bank had additional unused borrowings available at the Federal Reserve
discount window of $71.5 million and $73.0 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
certain commercial and commercial real estate loans with a carrying value totaling $125.8 million and $129.2 million,
respectively, were pledged as collateral on our line of credit with the Federal Reserve discount window. The Federal
Reserve does not have the right to sell or repledge these loans.

Subordinated Debentures

In October 2003, we created two wholly-owned statutory trusts, CPB Capital Trust II ("Trust II") and CPB Statutory
Trust III ("Trust III"). Trust II issued $20.0 million in trust preferred securities bearing an interest rate of three-month
LIBOR plus 2.85% and maturing on October 7, 2033. The principal assets of Trust II are $20.6 million of the
Company's subordinated debentures with an identical interest rate and maturity as the Trust II trust preferred
securities. Trust II issued $0.6 million of common securities to the Company.

Trust III issued $20.0 million in trust preferred securities bearing an interest rate of three-month LIBOR plus 2.85%
and maturing on December 17, 2033. The principal assets of Trust III are $20.6 million of the Company's
subordinated debentures with an identical interest rate and maturity as the Trust III trust preferred securities. Trust III
issued $0.6 million of common securities to the Company.

In September 2004, we created a wholly-owned statutory trust, CPB Capital Trust IV ("Trust IV"). Trust IV issued
$30.0 million in trust preferred securities bearing an interest rate of three-month LIBOR plus 2.45% and maturing on
December 15, 2034. The principal assets of Trust IV are $30.9 million of the Company's subordinated debentures with
an identical interest rate and maturity as the Trust IV trust preferred securities. Trust IV issued $0.9 million of
common securities to the Company.

In December 2004, we created a wholly-owned statutory trust, CPB Statutory Trust V ("Trust V"). Trust V issued
$20.0 million in trust preferred securities bearing an interest rate of three-month LIBOR plus 1.87% and maturing on
December 15, 2034. The principal assets of Trust V are $20.6 million of the Company's subordinated debentures with
an identical interest rate and maturity as the Trust V trust preferred securities. Trust V issued $0.6 million of common
securities to the Company.

The trust preferred securities, the subordinated debentures that are the assets of Trusts II, III, IV and V and the
common securities issued by Trusts II, III, IV and V are redeemable in whole or in part on any interest payment date
on or after October 7, 2008 for Trusts II and III, and on or after December 15, 2009 for Trust IV and V, or at any time
in whole but not in part within 90 days following the occurrence of certain events. Our obligations with respect to the
issuance of the trust preferred securities constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by the Company of each trust's
obligations with respect to its trust preferred securities. Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, we may elect

Edgar Filing: CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

43



from time to time to defer interest payments on the subordinated debentures, which would result in a deferral of
distribution payments on the related trust preferred securities, for up to 20 consecutive quarterly periods without
default or penalty.

11. EQUITY

As a Hawaii state-chartered bank, Central Pacific Bank may only pay dividends to the extent it has retained earnings
as defined under Hawaii banking law ("Statutory Retained Earnings"), which differs from GAAP retained earnings.
As of June 30, 2018, the bank had Statutory Retained Earnings of $86.3 million.

Dividends are payable at the discretion of the Board of Directors and there can be no assurance that the Board of
Directors will continue to pay dividends at the same rate, or at all, in the future. Our ability to pay cash dividends to
our shareholders is
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subject to restrictions under federal and Hawaii law, including restrictions imposed by the FRB and covenants set
forth in various agreements we are a party to, including covenants set forth in our subordinated debentures.

In January 2016, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $30.0 million of the Company's common
stock from time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a newly authorized
share repurchase program (the "2016 Repurchase Plan"), which superseded in its entirety the repurchase plan that was
previously approved by the Board of Directors.

In January 2017, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $30.0 million of the Company's common
stock from time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a newly authorized
share repurchase program (the "2017 Repurchase Plan"). The 2017 Repurchase Plan replaced and superseded in its
entirety the 2016 Repurchase Plan. In January 2017, prior to the 2017 Repurchase Plan being approved, 1,750 shares
of common stock, at a cost of $0.1 million, were repurchased under the 2016 Repurchase Plan.

In November 2017, the Board of Directors authorized an increase in the share repurchase program authority by an
additional $50.0 million (known henceforth as the "Repurchase Plan"). This amount is in addition to the $30.0 million
in planned repurchases authorized in January 2017. There is no expiration date on the Repurchase Plan.

In the year ended December 31, 2017, 864,483 shares of common stock, at a cost of $26.6 million, were repurchased
under the 2016 Repurchase Plan and the Repurchase Plan combined.

In the six months ended June 30, 2018, a total of 614,247 shares of common stock, at a cost of $18.1 million, were
repurchased under the Repurchase Plan. A total of $35.4 million remained available for repurchase under the
Repurchase Plan as of June 30, 2018.

12. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 606, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers", establishes principles
for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity's contracts to provide goods or services to its customers. The core principle requires an entity to recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that it
expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied.

The Company recognizes revenues as they are earned based on contractual terms, as transactions occur, or as services
are provided and collectability is reasonably assured. Our principal source of revenue is derived from interest income
on financial instruments, such as our loan and investment securities portfolios, as well as revenue related to our
mortgage banking activities. These revenue-generating transactions are out of scope of ASC 606, but are subject to
other GAAP and discussed elsewhere within our disclosures.

We also generate other revenue in connection with our broad range of banking products and financial services.
Descriptions of our other revenue-generating activities that are within the scope of ASC 606, which are presented in
our consolidated statements of income as components of other operating income are as follows:

Service charges on deposit accounts

Edgar Filing: CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

45



Revenue from service charges on deposit accounts includes general service fees for monthly account maintenance and
activity- or transaction-based fees and consist of transaction-based revenue, time-based revenue (service period),
item-based revenue or some other individual attribute-based revenue. Revenue is recognized when our performance
obligation is completed which is generally monthly for account maintenance services or when a transaction has been
completed (such as stop payment fees). Payment for such performance obligations are generally received at the time
the performance obligations are satisfied.

Other Service Charges and Fees

Revenue from other service charges and fees includes cards and payments income, safe deposit rental income and
other service charges, commissions and fees.
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Cards and payments income includes interchange fees from debit cards processed through card association networks,
merchant services, and other card related services. Interchange rates are generally set by the credit card associations
and based on purchase volumes and other factors. Interchange fees are recognized as transactions occur. Interchange
expenses related to cards and payments income are presented gross in other operating expense. Merchant services
income represents account management fees and transaction fees charged to merchants for the processing of card
association network transactions. Merchant services revenue is recognized as transactions occur, or as services are
performed.

Other service charges, commissions and fees include automated teller machines ("ATM") surcharge and interchange
fees, bill payment fees, cashier’s check and money order fees, wire transfer fees, loan brokerage fees, and commissions
on sales of insurance, broker-dealer products, letters of credit, and travelers’ checks. Revenue from these fees and
commissions is recorded in a manner that reflects the timing of when transactions occur, and as services are provided.

Based on the nature of the commission agreement with the broker-dealer and each insurance provider, we may
recognize revenue from broker-dealer and insurance commissions over time or at a point-in-time as our performance
obligation is satisfied.

Income from Fiduciary Activities

Income from fiduciary activities includes fees from wealth management, trust, custodial and escrow services provided
to individual and institutional customers. Revenue is generally recognized monthly based on a minimum annual fee
and/or the market value of assets in custody. Additional fees are recognized for transactional activity.

Revenue from trade execution and brokerage services is earned through commissions from trade execution on behalf
of clients. Revenue from these transactions is recognized at the trade date. Any ongoing service fees are recognized on
a monthly basis as services are performed.

Fees on Foreign Exchange

The Company provides foreign currency exchange services to customers, whereby cash can be converted to different
foreign currencies, and vice versa. As a result of the services, a gain or loss is recognized on foreign currency
transactions, as well as income related to commissions and fees earned on each transaction.

Revenue from the commissions and fees earned on the transactions fall within the scope of ASC 606, and is recorded
in a manner that reflects the timing of when transactions occur, and as services are provided. Realized and unrealized
gains or losses related to foreign currency are out of scope of ASC 606.

Loan Placement Fees

Loan placement fees primarily represent revenues earned by the Company for loan placement and underwriting.
Revenues for these services are recorded at a point-in-time, upon completion of a contractually identified transaction,
or when an advisory opinion is provided.

Gain on Sales of Foreclosed Assets

The Company records a gain or loss on the sale of a foreclosed property when control of the property transfers to the
Company, which typically occurs at the time the deed is executed. The Company does not finance the sale of the
foreclosed property.
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The following presents the Company's other operating income, segregated by revenue streams that are in-scope and
out-of-scope of ASC 606 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.
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Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months
Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Other operating income:
In-scope of ASC 606
Service charges on deposit accounts $1,977 $2,120 $3,980 $4,156
Other service charges on deposit accounts 2,835 2,513 5,391 4,724
Income on fiduciary activities 1,017 964 1,973 1,828
Fees on foreign exchange 28 44 60 83
Loan placement fees 220 146 417 280
Net gain on sales of foreclosed assets — 84 — 186
In-scope other operating income 6,077 5,871 11,821 11,257
Out-of-scope other operating income 3,553 1,999 6,763 6,627
Total other operating income $9,630 $7,870 $18,584 $17,884

13. MORTGAGE BANKING INCOME

Noninterest income from the Company's mortgage banking activities include the following components for the
periods indicated:

Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months
Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Mortgage banking income:
Loan servicing fees $1,289 $1,340 $2,600 $2,698
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights (437 ) (547 ) (894 ) (1,067 )
Gain on sale of residential mortgage loans 959 1,084 1,931 2,396
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate locks (36 ) 80 (15 ) (127 )
Total mortgage banking income $1,775 $1,957 $3,622 $3,900

14. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Restricted Stock Awards and Units

The table below presents the activity of restricted stock awards and units for the six months ended June 30, 2018:

Shares

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested restricted stock awards and units, beginning of period 397,551 $ 25.49
Changes during the period:
Granted 112,794 29.55
Vested (110,336) 24.36
Forfeited (18,977 ) 27.47
Non-vested restricted stock awards and units, end of period 381,032 26.93
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15. PENSION AND SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLANS

Central Pacific Bank has a defined benefit retirement plan (the "Pension Plan") which covers certain eligible
employees. The plan was curtailed effective December 31, 2002, and accordingly, plan benefits were fixed as of that
date. The following table sets forth the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Pension Plan for the periods
indicated:

Three
Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months
Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest cost $167 $233 $398 $462
Expected return on plan assets (345 ) (264 ) (604 ) (528 )
Amortization of net actuarial loss 192 300 490 596
Net periodic cost $14 $269 $284 $530

Our bank also established Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans ("SERPs"), which provide certain (current and
former) officers of our bank with supplemental retirement benefits. We have not entered into a SERP since December
31, 2008.

In the second quarter of 2017, the Company settled a portion of the SERP obligation of a former executive. As a result
of the settlement, the Company remeasured the related SERP obligation and net periodic benefit cost and recognized a
pro-rata net actuarial loss of $0.1 million in SERP expense and other comprehensive income.

The following table sets forth the components of net periodic benefit cost for the SERPs for the periods indicated:

Three
Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months
Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest cost $98 $100 $195 $215
Amortization of net actuarial loss 43 25 86 51
Amortization of net transition obligation 4 5 9 9
Amortization of prior service cost 4 4 9 8
Settlement — 138 — 138
Net periodic cost $149 $272 $299 $421

All components of net periodic benefit cost are included in salaries and employee benefits in the Company's
consolidated statements of income.
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16. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following tables present the components of other comprehensive income for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, by component:

(dollars in thousands) Before Tax Tax Effect Net of Tax
Three Months Ended June 30, 2018
Net unrealized losses on investment securities:
Net unrealized losses arising during the period $ (5,057 ) $ (1,388 ) $ (3,669 )
Less: Reclassification adjustments from AOCI realized in net income — — —
Net unrealized losses on investment securities (5,057 ) (1,388 ) (3,669 )

Defined benefit plans:
Amortization of net actuarial loss 235 91 144
Amortization of net transition obligation 4 1 3
Amortization of prior service cost 4 1 3
Defined benefit plans, net 243 93 150

Other comprehensive loss $ (4,814 ) $ (1,295 ) $ (3,519 )

(dollars in thousands) Before Tax Tax Effect Net of Tax
Three Months Ended June 30, 2017
Net unrealized gains on investment securities:
Net unrealized gains arising during the period $ 3,001 $ 1,193 $ 1,808
Less: Reclassification adjustments from AOCI realized in net income 1,640 653 987
Net unrealized gains on investment securities 4,641 1,846 2,795

Defined benefit plans:
Amortization of net actuarial loss 325 222 103
Amortization of net transition obligation 5 2 3
Amortization of prior service cost 4 2 2
Settlement 138 56 82
Defined benefit plans, net 472 282 190

Other comprehensive income $ 5,113 $ 2,128 $ 2,985
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(dollars in thousands) Before Tax Tax Effect Net of Tax
Six Months Ended June 30, 2018
Net unrealized losses on investment securities:
Net unrealized losses arising during the period $ (25,512 ) $ (6,872 ) $ (18,640 )
Less: Reclassification adjustments from AOCI realized in net income — — —
Net unrealized losses on investment securities (25,512 ) (6,872 ) (18,640 )

Defined benefit plans:
Amortization of net actuarial loss 576 184 392
Amortization of net transition obligation 9 2 7
Amortization of prior service cost 9 2 7
Defined benefit plans, net 594 188 406

Other comprehensive loss $ (24,918 ) $ (6,684 ) $ (18,234 )

(dollars in thousands) Before Tax Tax Effect Net of Tax
Six Months Ended June 30, 2017
Net unrealized gains on investment securities:
Net unrealized gains arising during the period $ 6,528 $ 2,596 $ 3,932
Less: Reclassification adjustments from AOCI realized in net income 1,640 653 987
Net unrealized gains on investment securities 8,168 3,249 4,919

Defined benefit plans:
Net actuarial losses arising during the period (1,042 ) (415 ) (627 )
Amortization of net actuarial loss 647 287 360
Amortization of net transition obligation 9 3 6
Amortization of prior service cost 8 3 5
Settlement 138 56 82
Defined benefit plans, net (240 ) (66 ) (174 )

Other comprehensive income $ 7,928 $ 3,183 $ 4,745

The following tables present the changes in each component of AOCI, net of tax, for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017:

(dollars in thousands) Investment
Securities

Defined
Benefit
Plans

AOCI

Three Months Ended June 30, 2018
Balance at beginning of period $ (10,492 ) $(7,237) $(17,729)

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (3,669 ) — (3,669 )
Reclassification adjustments from AOCI — 150 150
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (3,669 ) 150 (3,519 )

Balance at end of period $ (14,161 ) $(7,087) $(21,248)
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(dollars in thousands) Investment
Securities

Defined
Benefit
Plans

AOCI

Three Months Ended June 30, 2017
Balance at beginning of period $ 6,853 $(6,614) $239

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 1,808 — 1,808
Reclassification adjustments from AOCI 987 190 1,177
Total other comprehensive income 2,795 190 2,985

Balance at end of period $ 9,648 $(6,424) $3,224

(dollars in thousands) Investment
Securities

Defined
Benefit
Plans

AOCI

Six Months Ended June 30, 2018
Balance at beginning of period $5,073 $(6,112) $(1,039 )
Impact of the adoption of new accounting standards (139 ) — (139 )
Adjusted balance at beginning of period 4,934 (6,112 ) (1,178 )

Impact of the adoption of new accounting standards (455 ) (1,381 ) (1,836 )

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (18,640 ) — (18,640 )
Reclassification adjustments from AOCI — 406 406
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (18,640 ) 406 (18,234 )

Balance at end of period $ (14,161 ) $(7,087) $(21,248)

(dollars in thousands) Investment
Securities

Defined
Benefit
Plans

AOCI

Six Months Ended June 30, 2017
Balance at beginning of period $ 4,729 $(6,250) $(1,521)

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 3,932 (627 ) 3,305
Reclassification adjustments from AOCI 987 453 1,440
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 4,919 (174 ) 4,745

Balance at end of period $ 9,648 $(6,424) $3,224
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The following table presents the amounts reclassified out of each component of AOCI for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Amount Reclassified from AOCI
Affected Line Item in the Statement
Where Net Income is PresentedDetails about AOCI Components Three months ended June

30,
(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017
Sale of investment securities available-for-sale $ — $ (1,640 ) Investment securities gains (losses)

— 653 Income tax benefit (expense)
$ — $ (987 ) Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit retirement and
supplemental executive retirement plan items
Net actuarial loss $ (235 ) $ (325 ) (1)
Net transition obligation (4 ) (5 ) (1)
Prior service cost (4 ) (4 ) (1)
Settlement — (138 ) (1)

(243 ) (472 ) Total before tax
93 282 Income tax benefit (expense)
$ (150 ) $ (190 ) Net of tax

Total reclassification adjustments from AOCI for
the period $ (150 ) $ (1,177 ) Net of tax

Amount Reclassified from AOCIAffected Line Item in the Statement
Where Net Income is PresentedDetails about AOCI Components Six months ended June 30,

(dollars in thousands) 2018 2017
Sale of investment securities available-for-sale $ — $ (1,640 ) Investment securities gains (losses)

— 653 Income tax benefit (expense)
$ — $ (987 ) Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit retirement and
supplemental executive retirement plan items
Net actuarial loss $ (576 ) $ (647 ) (1)
Net transition obligation (9 ) (9 ) (1)
Prior service cost (9 ) (8 ) (1)
Settlement — (138 ) (1)

(594 ) (802 ) Total before tax
188 349 Income tax benefit (expense)
$ (406 ) $ (453 ) Net of tax

Total reclassification adjustments from AOCI for
the period $ (406 ) $ (1,440 ) Net of tax

(1)These AOCI components are included in the computation of net periodic pension cost (see Note 15 - Pension andSupplemental Executive Retirement Plans for additional details).
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents the information used to compute basic and diluted earnings per common share for the
periods indicated:

Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Net income $14,224 $ 12,025 $28,501 $ 25,104

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 29,510,17530,568,247 29,658,05130,641,165
Dilutive effect of employee stock options and awards 204,767 235,478 223,483 238,758
Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted 29,714,94230,803,725 29,881,53430,879,923

Basic earnings per common share $0.48 $ 0.39 $0.96 $ 0.82
Diluted earnings per common share $0.48 $ 0.39 $0.95 $ 0.81

Anti-dilutive employee stock options and awards outstanding — 33 — 25
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18. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates, methods and assumptions are set forth below for our financial instruments.

Short-Term Financial Instruments

The carrying values of short-term financial instruments are deemed to approximate fair values. Such instruments are
considered readily convertible to cash and include cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in other banks,
accrued interest receivable, short-term borrowings, and accrued interest payable.

Investment Securities

The fair value of investment securities is based on market price quotations received from third-party pricing services.
The third-party pricing services utilize pricing models supported with timely market data information. Where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable securities.

Loans

Fair values of loans are estimated based on discounted cash flows of portfolios of loans with similar financial
characteristics including the type of loan, interest terms and repayment history. Fair values are calculated by
discounting scheduled cash flows through estimated maturities using estimated market discount rates. Estimated
market discount rates are reflective of credit and interest rate risks inherent in the Company's various loan types and
are derived from available market information, as well as specific borrower information. In accordance with ASU
2016-01, the fair value of loans as of June 30, 2018 are based on the notion of exit price. The fair value of loans as of
December 31, 2017 was measured using an entry price notion.

Loans Held for Sale

The fair value of loans classified as held for sale are generally based upon quoted prices for similar assets in active
markets, acceptance of firm offer letters with agreed upon purchase prices, discounted cash flow models that take into
account market observable assumptions, or independent appraisals of the underlying collateral securing the loans. We
report the fair values of Hawaii and U.S. Mainland construction and commercial real estate loans, if any, net of
applicable selling costs on our consolidated balance sheets.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The initial fair value of the servicing right is calculated by a discounted cash flow model prepared by a third-party
service provider based on market value assumptions at the time of origination. We assess the servicing right for
impairment using current market value assumptions at each reporting period. Critical assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow model include mortgage prepayment speeds, discount rates, costs to service, and ancillary
income. Variations in our assumptions could materially affect the estimated fair values. Changes to our assumptions
are made when current trends and market data indicate that new trends have developed. Current market value
assumptions based on loan product types (fixed rate, adjustable rate and balloon loans) include average discount rates
and prepayment speeds. Many of these assumptions are subjective and require a high level of management judgment.
Our mortgage servicing rights portfolio and valuation assumptions are periodically reviewed by management.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
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It is not practical to determine the fair value of FHLB stock due to the restrictions placed on its transferability.

Deposit Liabilities

The fair values of deposits with no stated maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits and interest-bearing
demand and savings accounts, are equal to the amount payable on demand. The fair value of time deposits is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of
similar remaining maturities.

36

Edgar Filing: CENTRAL PACIFIC FINANCIAL CORP - Form 10-Q

60



Long-Term Debt

The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated by discounting scheduled cash flows over the contractual borrowing
period at the estimated market rate for similar borrowing arrangements.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The fair values of off-balance sheet financial instruments are estimated based on the fees currently charged to enter
into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of
the counterparties, current settlement values or quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

For derivative financial instruments, the fair values are based upon current market values, if available. If there are no
relevant comparables, fair values are based on pricing models using current assumptions for interest rate swaps and
options.

Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for
sale at one time our entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no market exists for a significant
portion of our financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss
experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments and other factors. These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot
be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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Fair value estimates are based on existing on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments without attempting to
estimate the value of future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial
instruments. For example, significant assets and liabilities that are not considered financial assets or liabilities include
deferred tax assets, premises and equipment and intangible assets.

Fair Value Measurement Using

(dollars in thousands) Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

June 30, 2018
Financial assets
Cash and due from banks $ 75,547 $ 75,547 $ 75,547 $ — $ —
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 13,948 13,948 13,948 — —
Investment securities 1,438,969 1,433,143 844 1,420,965 11,334
Loans held for sale 9,096 9,096 — 9,096 —
Net loans and leases 3,833,400 3,730,643 — 19,834 3,710,809
Mortgage servicing rights 15,756 18,560 — — 18,560
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 10,246 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Financial liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand 1,365,010 1,365,010 1,365,010 — —
Interest-bearing demand and savings and money
market 2,455,275 2,455,275 2,455,275 — —

Time 1,158,814 1,151,237 — — 1,151,237
Short-term borrowings 87,000 87,000 — 87,000 —
Long-term debt 92,785 88,407 — 88,407 —

Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Commitments to extend credit 1,039,452 1,302 — 1,302 —
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees
written 13,049 196 — 196 —

Derivatives:
Interest rate lock commitments 3,686 14 — 14 —
Forward sale commitments 12,740 (43 ) — (43 ) —
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Fair Value Measurement Using

(dollars in thousands) Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

December 31, 2017
Financial assets
Cash and due from banks $ 75,318 $ 75,318 $ 75,318 $ — $ —
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 6,975 6,975 6,975 — —
Investment securities 1,496,644 1,494,092 825 1,481,473 11,794
Loans held for sale 16,336 16,336 — 16,336 —
Net loans and leases 3,720,614 3,684,834 — 21,280 3,663,554
Mortgage servicing rights 15,843 17,161 — — 17,161
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 7,761 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Financial liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand 1,395,556 1,395,556 1,395,556 — —
Interest-bearing demand and savings and money
market 2,414,930 2,414,930 2,414,930 — —

Time 1,145,868 1,140,064 — — 1,140,064
Short-term borrowings 32,000 32,000 — 32,000 —
Long-term debt 92,785 70,139 — 70,139 —

Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Commitments to extend credit 917,405 1,140 — 1,140 —
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees
written 13,551 203 — 203 —

Derivatives:
Interest rate lock commitments 2,494 12 — 12 —
Forward sale commitments 18,748 (26 ) — (26 ) —

Fair Value Measurements

We group our financial assets and liabilities at fair value into three levels based on the markets in which the financial
assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value as follows:

•
Level 1 — Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities traded in active markets.
A quoted price in an active market provides the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used to measure fair
value whenever available.

•
Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant
assumptions are observable in the market.

•Level 3 — Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not observable in the
market. These unobservable assumptions reflect our own estimates of assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include use of discounted cash flow models and similar
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techniques that requires the use of significant judgment or estimation.

We base our fair values on the price that we would expect to receive if an asset were sold or pay to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. We also maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value measurements.

We use fair value measurements to record adjustments to certain financial assets and liabilities and to determine fair
value disclosures. Available-for-sale and equity securities and derivatives are recorded at fair value on a recurring
basis. From time to time, we may be required to record other financial assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis such
as loans held for sale,
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impaired loans, mortgage servicing rights, and other real estate owned. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments
typically involve application of the lower of cost or fair value accounting or write-downs of individual assets.

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into or out of a level as of the end of the reporting period. There were
no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the three
and six months ended June 30, 2018. Also, there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or out of
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018.

The following tables present the fair value of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2018
and December 31, 2017:

Fair Value at Reporting Date Using

(dollars in thousands) Fair Value

Quoted
Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

June 30, 2018
Available-for-sale securities:
Debt securities:
States and political subdivisions $175,918 $— $ 164,584 $ 11,334
Corporate securities 65,432 — 65,432 —
U.S. Treasury obligations and direct obligations of U.S
Government agencies 35,503 — 35,503 —

Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government sponsored entities 773,725 — 773,725 —
Commercial - U.S. Government agencies and sponsored entities 52,423 — 52,423 —
Residential - Non-government agencies 42,846 — 42,846 —
Commercial - Non-government agencies 134,122 — 134,122 —
Total available-for-sale securities 1,279,969 — 1,268,635 11,334
Equity securities 844 844 — —
Derivatives: Interest rate lock and forward sale commitments (29 ) — (29 ) —
Total $1,280,784 $ 844 $ 1,268,606 $ 11,334
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Fair Value at Reporting Date Using

(dollars in thousands) Fair Value

Quoted
Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

December 31, 2017
Available-for-sale securities:
Debt securities:
States and political subdivisions $179,781 $— $ 167,987 $ 11,794
Corporate securities 74,278 — 74,278 —
U.S. Treasury obligations and direct obligations of U.S
Government agencies 25,510 — 25,510 —

Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential - U.S. Government sponsored entities 800,683 — 800,683 —
Commercial - U.S. Government agencies and sponsored entities 39,725 — 39,725 —
Residential - Non-government agencies 46,763 — 46,763 —
Commercial - Non-government agencies 137,326 — 137,326 —
Total available-for-sale securities 1,304,066 — 1,292,272 11,794
Equity securities 825 825 — —
Derivatives: Interest rate lock and forward sale commitments (14 ) — (14 ) —
Total $1,304,877 $ 825 $ 1,292,258 $ 11,794

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis are summarized as follows:

(dollars in thousands)

Available for Sale
Debt Securities:
States and
Political
Subdivisions

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 11,794
Principal payments received (189 )
Unrealized net gain (loss) included in other comprehensive income (271 )
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 11,334

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 12,196
Principal payments received (183 )
Unrealized net gain (loss) included in other comprehensive income 176
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 12,189

Within the states and political subdivisions available-for-sale debt securities category, the Company holds four
mortgage revenue bonds issued by the City & County of Honolulu with an aggregate fair value of $11.3 million and
$12.2 million at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, respectively. The Company estimates the fair value of its mortgage
revenue bonds by using a discounted cash flow model to calculate the present value of estimated future principal and
interest payments.
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The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of the Company's mortgage revenue bonds is
the weighted average discount rate. As of June 30, 2018, the weighted average discount rate utilized was 5.16%,
compared to 4.54% at June 30, 2017 and 4.81% at December 31, 2017, which was derived by incorporating a credit
spread over the FHLB Fixed-Rate Advance curve. Significant increases (decreases) in the weighted average discount
rate could result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.
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The following table presents the fair value of assets measured on a nonrecurring basis and the level of valuation
assumptions used to determine the respective fair values as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using

(dollars in thousands) Fair Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

June 30, 2018
Impaired loans (1) $ 19,834 $ —$ 19,834 $ —
Mortgage servicing rights 18,560 — — 18,560
Other real estate (2) 595 — 595 —

December 31, 2017
Impaired loans (1) $ 21,280 $ —$ 21,280 $ —
Mortgage servicing rights 17,161 — — 17,161
Other real estate (2) 851 — 851 —

(1) Represents carrying value and related write-downs of loans for which adjustments are based on agreed upon
purchase prices for the loans or the appraised value of the collateral.

(2)  Represents other real estate that is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is
generally based upon independent market prices or appraised values of the collateral.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company's mortgage servicing rights
are the weighted average discount rate and the forecasted constant prepayment rate. As of June 30, 2018, the weighted
average discount rate and the forecasted constant prepayment rate utilized were 9.5% and 13.9%, respectively,
compared to 9.5% and 16.1%, respectively, as of June 30, 2017 and 9.5% and 16.0%, respectively, as of
December 31, 2017. Significant increases (decreases) in the weighted average discount rate and/or the forecasted
constant prepayment rate could result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.

19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

We have the following three reportable segments: Banking Operations, Treasury and All Others. These segments are
consistent with our internal functional reporting lines and are managed separately because each unit has different
target markets, technological requirements, and specialized skills.

The Banking Operations segment includes construction and real estate development lending, commercial lending,
residential mortgage lending, indirect auto lending, trust services, retail brokerage services and our retail branch
offices, which provide a full range of deposit and loan products, as well as various other banking services. The
Treasury segment is responsible for managing the Company's investment securities portfolio and wholesale funding
activities. The All Others segment consists of all activities not captured by the Banking Operations or Treasury
segments described above and includes activities such as electronic banking, data processing and management of bank
owned properties.

The accounting policies of the segments are consistent with the Company's accounting policies that are described in
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K, as amended by our Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2017 filed with the SEC. The majority
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of the Company's net income is derived from net interest income. Accordingly, management focuses primarily on net
interest income, rather than gross interest income and expense amounts, in evaluating segment profitability.

Intersegment net interest income (expense) was allocated to each segment based upon a funds transfer pricing process
that assigns costs of funds to assets and earnings credits to liabilities based on market interest rates that reflect interest
rate sensitivity and maturity characteristics. All administrative and overhead expenses are allocated to the segments at
cost. Cash, investment securities, loans and leases and their related balances are allocated to the segment responsible
for acquisition and maintenance of those assets. Segment assets also include all premises and equipment used directly
in segment operations.
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Segment profits and assets are provided in the following table for the periods indicated.

(dollars in thousands) Banking
Operations Treasury All Others Total

Three Months Ended June 30, 2018
Net interest income $ 37,281 $5,391 $ — $42,672
Inter-segment net interest income (expense) 6,915 (4,941 ) (1,974 ) —
Credit (provision) for loan and lease losses (532 ) — — (532 )
Other operating income:
Mortgage banking income 923 — 852 1,775
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,977 — — 1,977
Other service charges and fees 1,287 8 2,082 3,377
Income from fiduciary activities 1,017 — — 1,017
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 37 — — 37
Fees on foreign exchange 29 248 — 277
Income from bank-owned life insurance — 501 — 501
Loan placement fees 220 — — 220
Other 200 2 247 449
Other operating income 5,690 759 3,181 9,630
Other operating expense (15,777 ) (358 ) (17,589 ) (33,724 )
Administrative and overhead expense allocation (15,167 ) (223 ) 15,390 —
Income before taxes 18,410 628 (992 ) 18,046
Income tax (expense) benefit (3,898 ) (133 ) 209 (3,822 )
Net income (loss) $ 14,512 $495 $ (783 ) $14,224

(dollars in thousands) Banking
Operations Treasury All Others Total

Three Months Ended June 30, 2017
Net interest income $ 34,558 $7,071 $ —$41,629
Inter-segment net interest income (expense) 8,161 (6,339 )
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